
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes           Matthew Hanks 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

             Linda Cowles                     Mary Starr 
  

          
     Daniel Tunstall       Ginger McFadden  

    
        

 
     Elizabeth McLane 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

                OCTOBER 21, 2013  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 21, 
2013, AT 6:30 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the October 07, 2013, P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 
p.m. 

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT NO. CUP 2013-08 
 
A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for Rebound Properties, Limited, owner, 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit, within a General Business Retail 
District (GB) on approximately 1.01 acres of land, to allow an Emergency Care 
Clinic on the following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Reserve “A,” being 1.01 acres of the Final Plat of Sunrise 
Lake Village; a 8.42 acre tract, situated in the John W. Maxey Survey, Abstract 
721, and being part of and out of a 208.10 acre tract described by deed recorded 
in Volume 1107, Page 859 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, City of 
Pearland, Texas. 
  

General Location: 2752 Sunrise Blvd., Pearland, TX   
 
 
B.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE NO. 
2013-16Z 

 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a change in zoning 
from Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district to General Commercial 
(GC) zoning district on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the following 
described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 
133 lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of 
a subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

 

County, Texas. 
 

General Location:  2106 O’Day Road, Pearland, TX 
 
C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
NO. CUP 2013-09 
 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit, within a proposed General Commercial (GC) zoning district, to allow an 
Auto Repair (Major) facility on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the 
following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 
133 lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of 
a subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 

  

General Location: 2106 O’Day Rd, Pearland, TX  
 
  
 
D.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF 
HIGHLAND CROSSING SECTION 1 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner for approval of the Final Plat of Highland 
Crossing Section 1, generally located at the 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road, on the 
following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 28.1 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R. Co. Survey, 
A-233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, A-542 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road 
 
E.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF 
SAVANNAH BEND SECTION 5 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah 
Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential subdivision located at the 
13000 Block of Savannah Bend Dr. on the following described property, to wit 
 

Decision 
Date 

10/25/13 

Decision 
Date: 

10/25/13 
 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Legal Description: Being 15.5 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 13000 Block of Savannah Bend Drive 
 
F.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - MASTER PLAT OF 
SILVERLAKE PARKWAY TRACT 

 
A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the Master 
Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract, generally located at the 2500 Block of Miller 
Ranch Rd. on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 33.3 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. 
Survey, A-233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. 
Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
 
 
G.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF  
SILVERLAKE PARKWAY TRACT SECTION 1 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1, generally located at the 
2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 21 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. Survey, 
A-233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
 
 
 
 
 

Decision 
Date:  

10/25/13 

Decision 
Date:  

10/25/13 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 

 

H.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER PLAT OF THE 
CENTER AT PEARLAND PARKWAY 

 
A request by Kristin LeBlanc of Halff Associates, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Stream Realty Partners, owner for approval of the Master Plat of The Center at 
Pearland Parkway, generally located at the 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway., 
on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 27.0508 acres of land located in the Thomas J. Green 
Survey, Abstract Number 198, City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway  

 
I.   DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
1. Comprehensive Plan Update 
2. Commissioners Activity Report 
3. Next P&Z Regular Meeting – November 4, 2013 

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Office Assistant of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City Hall 
on the 18th  day of October, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Office Assistant 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of October 2013. 
 

 

  

Decision 
Date:  

10/25/13 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, 
OCTOBER 7, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., 2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 
3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the P&Z Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. with the following present: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes       P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Matthew Hanks P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane  P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Mary Starr and seconded by Commissioner 
Elizabeth McLane.  The Minutes of the July 15, 2013 P&Z Regular Meeting were 
approved 7 – 0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
 

CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF AVALON 
TERRACE SECTION 4  
 
A request by Brent Lindelof of Jones and Carter, applicant, on behalf of MHI, owner, for 
approval of a Preliminary Plat of Avalon Terrace Section 4, a 57 lot single-family 
residential subdivision.  
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 16.94 acres of land out of the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. 
Survey, Abstract-505 Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: The northwest corner of Max Rd. and Hughes Ranch Rd. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Starr and seconded by Commissioner Linda 
Cowles.  Associate Planner Ian Clowes presented the staff report and indicated that 
staff was recommending approval. There were no issues presented by the 
Commissioners and the vote was approved 7 – 0.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 7, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 

CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SHADOW 
RIDGE SECTION 1 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry Gilberts and associates, applicant, on behalf of 
Development Consultants Inc.,  owner for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Shadow 
Ridge Section 1, a residential subdivision on 34.2 acres of land, and consisting of 115 
single family lots. 
 
Legal Description: Being 34.2 acres of land out of the William Pettus League Survey, 
A-68 City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Fort Bend County, Texas.  
 
General Location: 13000 Block of Broadway 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Cowles and seconded by Commissioner Starr.  
Associate Planner Clowes presented the staff report.  He explained that it is part of the 
Shadow Creek Planned Development (PD).  Director of Community Development Lata 
Krishnarao stated that there was some question at the beginning as to whether this was 
part of the PD or not.  It was confirmed that it was and that this parcel could be used for 
residential.  She also indicated that the other parcels that did not have a land use 
designation and it would be up to the property owners to ask for a land use designation that 
would be within the PD.  There were no questions or discussion that followed and a vote 
was approved 7 – 0. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Zoning Update – City Planner Harold Ellis went through the list of zonings.  Chairperson 
Henry Fuertes asked about one in particular that stated that the Commission had tabled 
it, but the Council approved it back in April.  City Planner explained that the Commission 
had requested further information, ultimately tabling it.  Community Development 
Director Lata Krishnarao clarified Chairperson Fuerte’s question stating that he was 
really asking how it could be table by the Commission and approved by the Council.  
City Planner stated that it would have ultimately come back to the Commission for 
approval.  He stated there should be an additional column on the list for an intermediate 
date.  He was going to double check his records. 
 
Commissioners Activity Report – City Planner Ellis mentioned that it would be better to 
discuss the Planners Association Conference in Galveston on the first meeting in 
November. Chairperson Fuertes stated that there was a handout given to each 
Commissioner regarding the Open House Workshop for the Comprehensive Plan and 
Community Director Krishnarao expanded briefly on the purpose of the workshop and 
what it would entail including the unveiling of the “Mind Mixer” on the website.  
  
Next JPH/PZ Meeting – October 16, 2013 – Chairperson Fuertes questioned the 
Commission as to any possible absences for the upcoming meeting.  There was no 
indication of any. 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 7, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 6:51 p.m. 
 
These Minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Office Assistant 
 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 21st day of October, 2013, A.D. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Henry Fuertes, P&Z Chairperson 
 

 

  



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD OCTOBER 21, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 

TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-08 
 
A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for Rebound Properties, Limited, owner, 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit, within a General Business Retail 
District (GB) on approximately 1.01 acres of land, to allow an Emergency Care 
Clinic on the following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Reserve “A,” being 1.01 acres of the Final Plat of Sunrise 
Lake Village; a 8.42 acre tract, situated in the John W. Maxey Survey, Abstract 
721, and being part of and out of a 208.10 acre tract described by deed recorded 
in Volume 1107, Page 859 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, City of 
Pearland, Texas. 
  

General Location: 2752 Sunrise Blvd., Pearland, TX   
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-08 
 

A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for Rebound Properties, Limited, owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit, within a General Business Retail District (GB) on 
approximately 1.01 acres of land, to allow an Emergency Care Clinic on the following 
described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Reserve “A,” being 1.01 acres of the Final Plat of Sunrise Lake 
Village; a 8.42 acre tract, situated in the John W. Maxey Survey, Abstract 721, and 
being part of and out of a 208.10 acre tract described by deed recorded in Volume 
1107, Page 859 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, City of Pearland, Texas. 

  

General Location: 2752 Sunrise Blvd., Pearland, TX   
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After the Joint Public Hearing, the requested 
Conditional Use Permit application will be considered as 
follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:        October 21, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                November 11, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          November 25, 2013* 

 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Greg McGahey, applicant for Rebound Properties Limited, owner, is 
requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for an Emergency Care 
Clinic; First Choice Emergency Room (FCEM), in the General Business Retail (GB) zone.  
The site is currently developed with a 10,302 square foot building, which was most recently 
used as a restaurant, and has been vacant since March 2012.  Of the 10, 302 square feet, 
approximately 7,657 square feet will be used as the ER area and 2,455 square feet as 
office space.   
 
The applicant has indicated that the scope of work on the interior of the existing building 
will include patient care areas, x-ray, CT examination rooms, lobby and support space, and 
an administrative office connected to the emergency room.  The scope of work on the 
exterior of the building will include removal of the existing wood deck and replacing it with 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 2 
 

landscaping.  The applicant also proposes to reuse existing exterior materials, where 
possible and permitted by the current Unified Development Code (UDC), with some added 
materials to help match the corporate prototype of FCEM.  The added materials include 
limestone feature walls and an entrance tower.  The existing pitched roof towers will be 
modified to match the new entrance tower, but will remain at the height of the existing 
tower.   
 
There will be no additional square footage added to the building. Two new entrances with 
canopies will serve the emergency room; one for patient drop off and one for ambulance 
pick up on the west side of the building.  There will be a separate entrance to the office on 
the south side of the building fronting Broadway Street.   
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning Land Use 

North General Business Retail 
(GB) 

Sunrise Lake Village 
Professional Office 

Building 
South Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

(ETJ) 
Retail Shopping 

Center/Undeveloped 
East General Business Retail 

(GB) 
Retail Shopping Center 

West General Business Retail 
(GB) 

Retail Shopping Center 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject 
property is located within the General Business Retail District (GB) and meets the general 
regulations of the zoning district.  The purpose of the GB zoning district is to permit an 
extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and business service 
establishments, offices and commercial recreational uses of limited scope.  These types of 
commercial uses are conducted wholly within an enclosed building but may incidentally 
display merchandise wholly under a permanent part of the main business structure, such 
as a marquee. 
 
A comparative analysis of the general regulations of the zoning district and site details 
follow: 
 
General Regulations GB Existing Site 

Minimum Lot Size 22,500 sq. ft. 43,797 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 150 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 125 ft. 211.42 ft. 

Minimum Front 
Setback 

25 ft. 13 ft. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 3 
 

Minimum Side Setback 10 ft. 20 ft. 

Minimum Rear Setback 25 ft. 35 ft. 

 
With the exception of the front yard setback, further discussed below, the site appears to 
meet the bulk requirements of the Unified Development Code. 
 
SITE HISTORY:   A variance (ZBA 2008-01) was approved, with conditions, by the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment on January 3, 2008, to allow encroachment into the front yard 
setback.  This variance was to permit a front yard covered patio which did not meet the 
front yard setback.  The applicant is proposing to remove this patio and replace it with 
landscaping as part of the project.   
 
In preparing to redevelop the site from the former restaurant to the proposed Emergency 
Care Clinic, the applicant attended a pre-development meeting with city staff to obtain 
feedback on improvements necessary as part of the development process. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property was platted in 2003 as Block 1, Reserve A, Sunrise 
Lake Village.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The site is located within the 
Retail, Offices and Services Future Land Use Designation.  The Comprehensive Plan 
indicates that appropriate corresponding zoning districts include Office and Professional 
(OP), Neighborhood Services (NS) and General Business Retail District (GB).  The subject 
site is located within the GB zoning district and therefore the proposed use is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan with approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway Street; a major thoroughfare with a minimum required right-of-way of 
120 feet, and Sunrise Blvd, a local street with a  minimum required right-of-way of 50 feet. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel has access to public water and public 
sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The subject property is 
developed with an approximately 10,302 square foot building which is currently vacant.  
The vacant building was most recently occupied by a restaurant.  The subject property is 
surrounded by commercial uses, including restaurants and retail establishments.  It is not 
anticipated that adjacent commercial and undeveloped properties will be negatively 
impacted, given that it is compatible with the existing surrounding uses, and that the 
immediate area is commonly zoned.  Additionally, the Engineering Department has 
indicated that the proposed Emergency Care Clinic will generate less traffic than the 
previous restaurant use. 
  
 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 4 
 

ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at 
the time of this report. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed 
to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the 
Conditional Use Permit.  A legal notice of public hearing was published in the local 
newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by the applicant.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed Conditional Use Permit 
request at the time of this report.   
 
CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL:  When considering an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall evaluate the impact of 
the proposed use on and its compatibility with surrounding properties and residential areas 
to ensure the appropriateness of the use at the particular location, and shall consider the 
extent to which: 

(1) The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies 
embodied in the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the general purpose and intent of the 
applicable zoning district regulations; 

(3) The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and 
integrity of adjacent developments and neighborhoods, and includes 
improvements either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate 
development related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual 
nuisances, drainage or other similar adverse effects to adjacent 
development and neighborhoods; 

(4) The proposed use does not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which 
will be hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood; 

(5) The proposed use incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control 
devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to control traffic flow or 
divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or eliminate development 
generated traffic on neighborhood streets; 

(6) The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, 
including visual impacts, of the proposed conditional use on adjacent 
properties; and 

 

 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 5 
 

(7) The proposed use meets the standards for the zoning district, or to the 
extent variations from such standards have been requested, that such 
variations are necessary to render the use compatible with adjoining 
development and the neighborhood. 

 

Conditions:  The City Council may require such modifications in the proposed use and 
attach such conditions to the Conditional Use Permit as the City Council deems necessary 
to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and intent of this 
section.  It should be noted that at this time staff has not identified negative impacts which 
will need to be mitigated as a result of the proposed redevelopment.  However, in order to 
ensure that the site is redeveloped in accordance with the current proposal, staff is 
recommending that the site plan submitted with this application be added to the adopting 
ordinance, if approved by Council, in the form of a condition of approval.  Should City 
Council identify impacts which it feels should be mitigated, additional conditions and 
modifications may be placed on the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP 2013-08) to allow the operation of an Emergency Care Clinic facility within a General 
Business Retail (GB) zoning district for the following reasons and subject to the following 
condition: 

 
1. It is not anticipated that the proposed use will have any significant negative impacts 

on surrounding undeveloped or developed properties. 
 

2. The proposed request would result in reuse of an existing building directly adjacent 
to an existing shopping center. 
 

3. The proposed request will conform to the Unified Development Code and 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map with approval of the Conditional Use 
Permit. 
 

4. The proposed request appears to meet the criteria of approval listed above. 
 

Recommended Conditions: 
 

1. The site shall be redeveloped in accordance with the site plan, as submitted by the 
applicant, and all applicable City requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-08 

Page 6 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Applicant packet 
 Related Documents 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
CUP 2013-08
2752 Sunrise Blvd.

GB

R-3

PUD

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

SUNLAKE DR

SILVERLAKE PKWY

SMITH RD

SUNRISE BLVD

CR 90
SUNFISH DR

SUNBIRD CT

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
CUP 2013-08
2752 Sunrise Blvd.

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

SUNLAKE DRSILVERLAKE PKWY

SMITH RD

SUNRISE BLVD

CR 90
SUNFISH DR

SUNBIRD CT

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2013-08
2752 Sunrise Blvd. 

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP

CITY NATIONAL BANK 555 S FLOWER ST 16TH FL LOS ANGELES CA 90071

US BANK NA TRUSTEE %C-III ASSET 

MANAGEMENT LLC

5221 N O'CONNOR BLVD SUITE 

600 IRVING TX 75039

PLAKA PEARLAND LLC PO BOX 7092 RANCHO SANTA FE CA 92067

GREG MCGAHEY 8080 PARK LANE, STE 800 DALLAS TX 75231

REBOUND PROPERTIES, LTD PO BOX 1406 SPRING TX 77383



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-08
2752 Sunrise Blvd.

Retail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

Low Density Residential

Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

SUNLAKE DRSILVERLAKE PKWY

SMITH RD

SUNRISE BLVD

CR 90
SUNFISH DR

SUNBIRD CT

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-08
2752 Sunrise Blvd.

BROADWAY ST

SUNLAKE DRSILVERLAKE PKWY

SMITH RD

SUNRISE BLVD

CR 90
SUNFISH DR

SUNBIRD CT

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD OCTOBER 21, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 

TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 2013-16Z 
 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a change in zoning 
from Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district to General Commercial 
(GC) zoning district on approximately for .63 acres of land on the following 
described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 
133 lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of 
a subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
 
General Location:  2106 O’Day Road, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-16Z 
 

A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a change in zoning from 
Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district to General Commercial (GC) 
zoning district on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the following described 
property, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 133 
lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of a 
subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
 

General Location:  2106 O’Day Road, Pearland, TX 
    

 
APPROVAL PROCESS: After the Joint Public Hearing, the requested zoning 

        change application will be considered as follows: 
 

Planning and Zoning Commission:   October 21, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:           November 11, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:     November 25, 2013* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  James Leach, applicant/owner is requesting approval of a zone change from 
the Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) to the General Commercial (GC) on approximately 
.63 acres of land located on the west side of O’Day Road; between Butler Road to the 
north and Olin Drive to the south.  The applicant proposes a full service automotive repair 
shop, similar to Lewis Auto Service located on Harkey Road, which is also owned by the 
applicant. 
 
The proposed use is classified as Auto Repair (Major) by the Unified Development Code 
(UDC)’s Land Use Matrix and is not a permitted use in the existing zoning district of G/O-
MU.  The proposed zoning district of GC allows the proposed use with approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  In conjunction with the zoning change request, the 
applicant has also submitted application for a CUP (CUP 2013-09), to allow the requested 
use.   
 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 2 
 

As indicated in the UDC, the purpose of the GC zoning district is to permit a wide variety of 
businesses characterized by those uses that may require an extensive amount of land for 
the conduct of business and/or that may require outside storage areas. 
 
The site is currently developed with an approximately 4,000 square foot office/warehouse 
building, which, according to appraisal district records, was originally constructed in 1993, 
with improvements added in 2004. According to City utility records, the prior business at 
the subject site was Roy Shugart Glass and Mirror; a company which specialized in custom 
glass and window repair.  This business operated at the subject site from August, 2004 to 
November 12, 2012. 
  
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning Land Use 

North Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 
(G/O-MU) 

Storage/Warehouse, 
predominantly Single 

Family Residential 
South Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 

(G/O-MU) 
Storage/Warehouse, 
predominantly Single 

Family Residential 
East Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 

(G/O-MU) 
Single Family Residential 

West Single Family Residential 1 
(R-1) 

Single Family Residential 

 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):   The subject 
property is located within the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use zoning district.  The general  lot 
and bulk regulations of the existing and proposed zoning districts are consistent.  The 
existing building is nonconforming as it relates to the minimum lot width and the minimum 
side yard setback on the south side of the property.  The minimum side yard is 10 feet.  
The existing building encroaches into the side yard setback.  The minimum lot width in both 
zoning districts is 150 feet.  The site width is 125 feet.  A comparative analysis of the 
general regulations of the existing (G/O-MU), and proposed (GC) zoning districts, as well 
as existing site conditions follows: 
 

General Regulations GO-MU 

(Existing) 

GC 

(Proposed) 

 

Existing Site 

Minimum Lot Size 22,500 sq. ft. 22,500 sq. ft. 27, 500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 150 ft. 125 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 125 ft. 125 ft. 220 ft. 

Minimum Front Setback 25 ft. 25 ft. 40.49 ft. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 3 
 

Minimum Side Setback 10 ft. 10 ft. 5.32 ft. & 45 ft. 

Minimum Rear Setback 30 ft.* 30 ft.* 45 ft. 

 
*   The minimum rear yard is 25 feet in both the existing (GO-MU) and proposed (GC) zoning districts, except 
there shall be a minimum 30-foot wide landscape buffer between nonresidential and single family if screening 
is achieved by a vegetative screen and not an opaque screening wall. A 25-foot wide buffer may be used, if in 
conjunction with a masonry wall. 
 
SITE HISTORY:   Prior to the adoption of the UDC in 2006, the subject property was 
located within the Commercial (C) zoning district, contained in the Urban Land Use and 
Development Ordinance.  The proposed use of Auto Repair (Major) was classified as Auto 
Sales and Repair (in Building), and was a permitted use.  The current UDC does not permit 
the proposed use in the property’s existing zoning district of G/O-MU. 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property was platted in 1965 as Block 3, Lot 9, Hickory Creek 
Place.  
  
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The site is located within the 
Garden O’Day Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation.  The goal of the 1999 Future Land 
Use Plan in relation to the O’Day Road area was to transition the area from existing uses to 
residential uses with allowances for General Business uses with the intent to permit an 
extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and business service 
establishments, offices and commercial recreational uses of limited scope.  
 
As a result of the 2004 Comprehensive Plan Update, it was determined that the O’Day 
Road area should include mixed use developments in order to maintain consistency 
between the City’s adopted plan and the UDC.  Acceptable land uses within the 
Garden/O’Day Mixed Use District include the following: 
 

 Single-family residential 
 Manufacturing businesses 
 Fabrication businesses 
 Technology businesses 
 Retailing  
 Manufactured homes 
 Light commercial 

 
As a result of the transition of this area, most of the existing non-residential uses are 
considered nonconforming.  One of the main goals of the Garden O’Day Mixed Use District 
is to bring the majority of existing nonresidential uses into conformance.  New uses should 
be closely defined and should be consistent with the types of uses that preserve the 
residential character of the district. There are currently no existing Auto Repair facilities 
within the vicinity. 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 4 
 

frontage on O’Day Road; a secondary thoroughfare, with a minimum of 100’ right-of-way.  
It appears that there is sufficient right-of-way to comply with the thoroughfare plan. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel has access to public water and sewer.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed use of Auto 
Repair (Major) is a permitted use in the proposed GC zoning district with approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  However, the proposed use is not a permitted use in the 
existing zoning district of G/O-MU, with or without approval of a CUP.  If the zone change is 
approved as requested, the proposed use will allow nonresidential uses which may prove 
to be incompatible with existing uses and would contradict the intent of the district, which is 
to allow the continuation of existing nonresidential uses, while respecting and preserving 
residential uses that now co-exist with nonresidential uses.  
 
While this is not a complete list of allowed uses in the GC zone, the following uses may not 
be compatible with existing nearby residential development; however would be permitted in 
the GC, zone if the request is approved: 
 

 Commercial Amusement (Indoor) 
 Commercial Amusement (Outdoor) 
 Dinner Theatre 
 Commercial Swimming Pool 
 All-Terrain Vehicle (Go-Carts & Motor Cycle) Dealer/Sales 
 Auto Accessory and/or Parts Sales 
 Auto Glass Repair/Tinting 
 Auto Interior Shop/Upholstery 
 Auto Rental 
 Auto Sales 
 Auto Repair Major/Minor 
 Auto Wash 
 Auto Wrecker Services 
 Boat Sales 
 Commercial Transit Terminal 
 Gasoline Station 
 Limousine/Taxi Service 
 Motorcycle Sales/Dealer 
 Parking Lot or Garage for Passengers 
 Tire Sales 
 Truck (Heavy) and Bus Rental or Sales 
 Truck or Freight Terminal 
 Automatic Teller Machine 
 Automobile Driving School 
 Bed and Breakfast Inn 
 Check Cashing Service 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 5 
 

 Extended Stay Hotel/Motel 
 Laundromat (Self Service Laundry) 

 
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is not required for the proposed use to determine any 
adverse effects on traffic as no expansions for the current proposal are anticipated.  There 
is currently no detention on site and will be required for any future expansions.   
The site is currently considered non-conforming.  As a result of the change in use, 
improvements would be required including façade requirements, to include 100% masonry 
where visible from the right-of-way or abutting residential properties; parking lot screening, 
and refuse container screening. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.   A legal notice of public 
hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the 
subject property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Based on notices that the 
applicant sent to nearby property owners, staff has received six (6) notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in opposition to the request, which represents 39% of the 
total land area within 200 feet of the site.  Per Section 211.006 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, a supermajority vote is required by City Council to approve this zone 
change request, as opposition within 200 feet of the site exceeds 20% of the land area 
within the required notification range. 
  
Additionally staff received 65 notices within the vicinity, including the adjacent 
neighborhood, but outside of the 200 foot buffer area, which are opposed to the request.   
The notices submitted do not indicate opposition to the Zone Change or associated 
Conditional Use Permit, rather they indicate opposition to the proposed use.  The 
opposition letters received at the time of this report have been provided to Council. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is unable to recommend approval of the request to 
rezone the subject .63 acres of land from Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zone to 
General Commercial (GC) zone for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zoning district does not conform to the Future Land Use 
element of the Comprehensive Plan, and if approved, would contradict the 
intent of the G/O-MU district. 

 
2. The proposed zoning district could introduce uses to the neighborhood that 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
Zone Change 2013-16Z 

Page 6 
 

may be considered incompatible. 
 

3. If approved, the proposed request could result in adverse impacts to the 
nearby properties which are not able to be mitigated and negatively affect the 
quality of life. 

 

4. The proposed zoning district will create an isolated zoning district surrounded 
by a larger zoning district. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Zone Change 2013-16Z
2106 O'Day Rd.

R-1

MH

PUD

G/O-MU

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
Zone Change 2013-16Z
2106 O'Day Rd.

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013-16Z
2106 O'Day - G/O-MU to GC

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP

KB HOME LONE STAR LP 11320 RICHMOND AVE HOUSTON TX 77082

JONES CECIL H JR 2018 PLUM GROVE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

VILLAGE GROVE HOMEOWNER ASSN INC 12603 LOUETTA RD #101 CYPRESS TX 77429

O'NEILL ROBIN RENEE PO BOX 890548 HOUSTON TX 77289

MCCRACKEN MYRNA LEE 2045 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

PINTO ERWIN A MIXCO 2117 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

JONES STANLEY 2125 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

RATCLIFF JOHN C 4803 ARROWHEAD LAKE DR MISSOURI CITY TX 77459

BARNES RALPH W JR 2049 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

SHUGART ROY M & KYLE A 1102 CHEYENNE RIDGE DR ROSHARON TX 77583

BRESEE WALTER & GLENDA 2105 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

MORTON MICHAEL D & ELIZABETH C PO BOX 410 PEARLAND TX 77588

MARTINEZ OSCAR J & NELDA 2126 ODAY RD PEARLAND TX 77581



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-16Z
2106 O'Day Rd.

Garden/O'Day Mixed Use DistLow Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-16Z
2106 O'Day Rd.

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

OLIN DR

PLUM GROVE LN
LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

¯0 80 16040 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





























































































































































































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 

TEXAS, TO BE HELD OCTOBER 21, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 

TEXAS 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 2013-09 
 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit, within a proposed General Commercial (GC) zoning district, to allow an 
Auto Repair (Major) facility on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the 
following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 
133 lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of 
a subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 

  

General Location: 2106 O’Day Rd, Pearland, TX   
 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 

 

A. STAFF REPORT 

B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 

 

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 

please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 

meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-09 
 

A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit, within a proposed General Commercial (GC) zoning district on 
approximately .63 acres of land, on the following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory 
Creek Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 133 
lots; being s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of a 
subdivision of the H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 

  

General Location: 2106 O’Day Rd, Pearland, TX   
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After the Joint Public Hearing, the requested 
Conditional Use Permit application will be considered as 
follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:        October 21, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                November 11, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          November 25, 2013* 

 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  James Leach, applicant/owner is requesting approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to allow for an Auto Repair (Major) facility at the above referenced location.  
In order to facilitate the request, the applicant has also submitted application for a change 
in zoning (2013-16Z) from Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) to General Commercial 
(GC), as the proposed use is not permitted in the existing zoning district. In order for 
Council to approve this request, the associated Zone Change request must be approved 
prior to the approval of this request. 
 
The applicant proposes a full service automotive repair shop, similar to Lewis Auto Service 
located on Harkey Road, which is also owned by the applicant.  As mentioned, the 
proposed use is classified as Auto Repair (Major) by the Unified Development Code 
(UDC)’s Land Use Matrix and is not a permitted use in the existing zoning district of G/O-



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 2 
 

MU.   
 
The scope of work at the subject site (O’Day Road location) will be to run fleet work.  The 
applicant/owner provides vehicle repair work to Strickland Chevrolet, Beck and Masten, 
Donlen Fleet, Xtreme Bedlines, etc., by picking up their vehicles, repairing them and 
delivering them back to the business. Normal hours of operation are from 8:00am to 
6:00pm Monday-Friday, and 8:00am to 12:00pm on Saturdays.  
 
The site is currently developed with an approximately 4,000 square foot office/warehouse 
building, which, according to appraisal district records, was originally constructed in 1993, 
with improvements added in 2004. According to City utility records, the prior business at 
the subject site was Roy Shugart Glass and Mirror; a company which specialized in custom 
glass and window repair.  The aforementioned commercial use was located at the subject 
site from August, 2004 to November 12, 2012. 
 
Due to the proposed change in occupancy, the existing building would have to conform to 
façade requirements.  The site is located on a secondary thoroughfare, and as such, 
requires 100% masonry or glass on any wall or portion of a wall visible from the roadway 
(public or private) or abutting residential zoning districts.  The standard would apply along 
the east side of the property fronting O’Day Road and portions of all facades, if visible from 
the roadway or abutting residential properties.  A 25-foot wide buffer is required along the 
west property line; adjacent to existing residential uses, except this buffer shall be at least 
30 feet wide if screening is achieved by a vegetative screen and not an opaque screening 
wall. 
 
The parking requirements for Auto Repair (Major) is one space per 200 square feet of 
gross floor area, excluding office space.  The site currently has 6 parking spaces, including 
1 handicap parking space.  The applicant will be required to add additional parking, 
however details on the exact number of spaces to be added will be addressed at the time 
of site plan. 
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning Land Use 

North Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 
(G/O-MU) 

Storage/Warehouse, 
predominantly Single 

Family Residential 
South Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 

(G/O-MU) 
Storage/Warehouse, 
predominantly Single 

Family Residential 
East Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 

(G/O-MU) 
Single Family Residential 

West Single Family Residential 1 
(R-1) 

Single Family Residential 

 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 3 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject 
property is located within the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use zoning district.  The general 
regulations of the existing and proposed zoning districts are consistent.  The existing 
building is nonconforming as it relates to the minimum lot width and the minimum side yard 
setback on the south side of the property.  The minimum side yard is 10 feet.  The existing 
building encroaches into the side yard setback.  The minimum lot width in both zoning 
districts is 150 feet.  The site width is 125 feet.  A comparative analysis of the general 
regulations of the existing (G/O-MU), and proposed (GC) zoning districts, as well as 
existing site conditions follows: 
 

General Regulations GO-MU 

(Existing) 

GC 

(Proposed) 

 

Existing Site 

Minimum Lot Size 22,500sq. ft. 22,500 sq. ft. 27, 500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 150 ft. 125 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 125 ft. 125 ft. 220 ft. 

Minimum Front Setback 25 ft. 25 ft. 40.49 ft. 

Minimum Side Setback 10 ft. 10 ft. 5.32 ft. & 45 ft. 

Minimum Rear Setback 30 ft.* 30 ft.* 45 ft. 

 
*   The minimum rear yard is 25 feet in both the existing (GO-MU) and proposed (GC) zoning districts, except 
there shall be a minimum 30-foot wide landscape buffer between nonresidential and single family if screening 
is achieved by a vegetative screen and not an opaque screening wall. A 25-foot wide buffer may be used, if in 
conjunction with a masonry wall. 
 
SITE HISTORY:   Prior to the adoption of the UDC in 2006, the subject property was 
located within the Commercial (C) zoning district, contained in the Urban Land Use and 
Development Ordinance.  The proposed use of Auto Repair (Major) was classified as Auto 
Sales and Repair (in Building), and was a permitted use.  The current UDC does not permit 
the proposed use in the property’s existing zoning district of G/O-MU. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property was platted in 1965 as Block 3, Lot 9, Hickory Creek 
Place.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The site is located within the 
Garden O’Day Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation.  The goal of the 1999 Future Land 
Use Plan in relation to the O’Day Road area was to transition the area from existing uses to 
residential uses with allowances for General Business uses with the intent to permit an 
extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and business service 
establishments, offices and commercial recreational uses of limited scope.  
 
As a result of the 2004 Comprehensive Plan Update, it was determined that the O’Day 
Road area should include mixed use developments in order to maintain consistency 
between the City’s adopted plan and the UDC.  Acceptable land uses within the 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 4 
 

Garden/O’Day Mixed Use District include the following: 
 

 Single-family residential 
 Manufacturing businesses 
 Fabrication businesses 
 Technology businesses 
 Retailing  
 Manufactured homes 
 Light commercial 

 
As a result of the transition of this area, most of the existing non-residential uses are 
considered nonconforming.  One of the main goals of the Garden O’Day Mixed Use District 
is to bring the majority of existing nonresidential uses into conformance.  New uses should 
be closely defined and should be consistent with the types of uses that preserve the 
residential character of the district. There are currently no existing Auto Repair facilities 
within the vicinity. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on O’Day Road; a secondary thoroughfare, with a minimum of 100’ right-of-way.  
It appears that there is sufficient right-of-way to comply with the thoroughfare plan. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel has access to public water and public 
sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed use of Auto 
Repair (Major) is a permitted use in the proposed zoning GC zoning district with approval of 
a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  However, the proposed use is not a permitted use in the 
existing zoning district of G/O-MU, with or without approval of a CUP.  If the zone change is 
approved as requested, the proposed use will allow nonresidential uses which may prove 
to be incompatible with existing uses and would contradict the intent of the district, which is 
to allow the continuation of existing nonresidential uses, while respecting and preserving 
residential uses that now co-exist with nonresidential uses.  
 
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is not required for the proposed use to determine any 
adverse effects on traffic as no expansions for the current proposal are anticipated.  There 
is currently no detention on site and will be required for any future expansions.   
 
The site is currently considered non-conforming.  As a result of the change in use, 
improvements would be required including façade requirements, to include 100% masonry 
where visible from the right-of-way or abutting residential properties; parking lot screening, 
and refuse container screening. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at 
the time of this report. 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 5 
 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed 
to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the 
Conditional Use Permit.  A legal notice of public hearing was published in the local 
newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by the applicant.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:   Based on notices that the 
applicant sent to nearby property owners, staff has received six (6) notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in opposition to the request, which represents 39% of the 
total land area within 200 feet of the site.  Per Section 211.006 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, a supermajority vote is required by City Council to approve this zone 
change request, as opposition within 200 feet of the site exceeds 20% of the land area 
within the required notification range. 
  
Additionally staff received 65 notices within the vicinity, including the adjacent 
neighborhood, but outside of the 200 foot buffer area, which are opposed to the request.   
The notices submitted do not indicate opposition to the Zone Change or associated 
Conditional Use Permit, rather they indicate opposition to the proposed use.  The 
opposition letters received at the time of this report have been provided to Council. 
 
CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL:  When considering an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall evaluate the impact of 
the proposed use on and its compatibility with surrounding properties and residential areas 
to ensure the appropriateness of the use at the particular location, and shall consider the 
extent to which: 

(1) The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies 
embodied in the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the general purpose and intent of the 
applicable zoning district regulations; 

(3) The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and 
integrity of adjacent developments and neighborhoods, and includes 
improvements either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate 
development related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual 
nuisances, drainage or other similar adverse effects to adjacent 
development and neighborhoods; 

(4) The proposed use does not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which 
will be hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood; 

(5) The proposed use incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control 
devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to control traffic flow or 
divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or eliminate development 



 
 

JPH 10-21-13 
CUP 2013-09 

Page 6 
 

generated traffic on neighborhood streets; 

(6) The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, 
including visual impacts, of the proposed conditional use on adjacent 
properties; and 

(7) The proposed use meets the standards for the zoning district, or to the 
extent variations from such standards have been requested, that such 
variations are necessary to render the use compatible with adjoining 
development and the neighborhood. 

Conditions:  The City Council may require such modifications in the proposed use and 
attach such conditions to the Conditional Use Permit as the City Council deems necessary 
to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and intent of this 
section.  Should City Council consider approving the request, and identifies negative 
impacts which it feels are able to be mitigated, conditions and modifications may be placed 
on the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is unable to recommend approval of the Conditional 
Use Permit to allow the operation of an Auto Repair Facility (Major) in the proposed 
General Commercial (GC) zone for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed request does not conform to the Future Land Use element of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
2. The requested use appears to be incompatible with nearby properties and 

surrounding residential uses. 
 

3. If approved, the proposed request could result in adverse impacts to the 
quality of life of surrounding residents, which are not able to be mitigated. 
   

4. The request does not appear to meet any of the criteria for approval for a 
Conditional Use Permit, as listed above. 

 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Applicant packet 
 Related Documents 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
CUP 2013-09
2106 O'Day Rd.

R-1

MH

PUD

G/O-MU

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
CUP 2013-09
2106 O'Day Rd.

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2013-09
2106 O'Day

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP

KB HOME LONE STAR LP 11320 RICHMOND AVE HOUSTON TX 77082

JONES CECIL H JR 2018 PLUM GROVE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

VILLAGE GROVE HOMEOWNER ASSN INC 12603 LOUETTA RD #101 CYPRESS TX 77429

O'NEILL ROBIN RENEE PO BOX 890548 HOUSTON TX 77289

MCCRACKEN MYRNA LEE 2045 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

PINTO ERWIN A MIXCO 2117 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

JONES STANLEY 2125 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

RATCLIFF JOHN C 4803 ARROWHEAD LAKE DR MISSOURI CITY TX 77459

BARNES RALPH W JR 2049 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

SHUGART ROY M & KYLE A 1102 CHEYENNE RIDGE DR ROSHARON TX 77583

BRESEE WALTER & GLENDA 2105 MELANIE LN PEARLAND TX 77581

MORTON MICHAEL D & ELIZABETH C PO BOX 410 PEARLAND TX 77588

MARTINEZ OSCAR J & NELDA 2126 ODAY RD PEARLAND TX 77581



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-09
2106 O'Day Rd.

Garden/O'Day Mixed Use DistLow Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Brazoria

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

PLUM GROVE LN
OLIN DR

ORCHARD FROST DR

MARSHA LN

LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

CARROLL DR

¯0 110 22055 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-09
2106 O'Day Rd.

ODAY RD

MELANIE LN

BUTLER RD

OLIN DR

PLUM GROVE LN
LITTLE GROVE DR

VILLAGE GROVE DR

ORCHARD TRAIL DR

¯0 80 16040 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.















P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    10/15/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner for approval of the Final Plat of Highland 
Crossing Section 1, generally located at the 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road.   

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
10/17/13 
 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 
 
Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner for approval of the Final Plat of Highland 
Crossing Section 1, generally located at the 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road, on the 
following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 28.1 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R. Co. Survey, A-
233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, A-542 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1, a 
proposed 59 lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 28.1 acres.  This 
proposed subdivision is zoned R-2 and has an approved cluster plan in place which 
allows deviation in lot sizes in return for additional open space and amenities which 
would not normally be required under the standard development requirements.  This 
final plat is for the area located within Section 1 of the approved Master Plat of Old Alvin 
Tract. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North GB, R-2 Crosspoint Church, Single 

Family Residential 
South R-2 Cluster Old Alvin Tract Vacant Land 
East R-2 Cluster Old Alvin Tract Vacant Land 
West GC Vacant Land, Cemetery 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject parcel is in conformance with the 
Unified Development Code with the approved cluster plan.  The cluster plan allows for a 
deviation in lot sizes in exchange for additional open and green space.  This cluster plan 
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission in December of 2012.   
 

 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 

Page 2 
 

OLD ALVIN CLUSTER PLAN: The property is zoned R-2 and has an approved cluster 
plan which permits the applicant to deviate from the required lot sizes.  Below is a table 
showing the requirements for R-2 and the approved cluster plan requirements.   
 

 Table 2: R-4 Single-Family Dwelling District  

 R-2 Requirements R-2 Cluster Proposed 

Minimum Lot Size: 7,000 square feet 6,600 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 70 Feet 55 Feet 

Minimum Lot Depth: 90 Feet 120 Feet 

Total Open Space: No requirement 7.91 Acres 

  
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first final plat for the Master Plat of Old Alvin Tract. 
The preliminary plat for this section was approved in January of 2013.   
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Low Density Residential future land use designations.  The Low Density Residential 
land designation is associated with the SR-12 and R-1 zoning designation.  These 
zones require minimum lot sizes of 12,000 and 8,800 square feet. This proposed plat is 
not in conformance with the Low Density Residential land use designation as the 
proposed lots are not a minimum of 8,800 square feet. However, a zone change to the 
Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) zone, considered to be medium density residential, 
was approved by City Council in October 2012 for this site, allowing for the proposed lot 
sizes. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE APPROVED CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN:  The 
required amenities indicated in the approved Cluster Development plan have been met 
for this section of the development.  Details on the required amenities for this section 
will be presented at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 

CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served 
by Old Alvin Rd., which is an 80-foot Major Collector. Currently Old Alvin has an 
approximate paved width of 24 feet. Internally this development will be served by 50-
foot local roads.   
     
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat was discussed at the Development Review 
Committee meeting. No additional comments were raised that have not been addressed 
by the applicant.         
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
approved for this subdivision.  
 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 

Page 3 
 

subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  A Drainage Plan has been approved by the 
Engineering Department.     
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND AMENITIES:  Parkland dedication fees will be required 
prior to recordation of any Final Plats. As part of this section, a park will be required 
within Reserve A, and Reserve B will have to be landscaped to meet the Cluster plan 
requirements. The trail located along and within the pipeline easement will be 
constructed as part of Section 2.  Staff had asked that the trail be included in Section 1, 
but due to planned pipeline maintenance in 2013, the applicant requested that it be built 
at a later time.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Final Plat as 
proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed Final plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Unified Development Code with the 
approved Cluster Plan 
 

3. The request is in conformance with the approved Old Alvin Tract Master Plat  
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 

 



Zoning & Vicinity Map
Final Plat - Highland
Crossing Sec. 1R-2

R-1

GB

GC

M-1

MCHARD RD

OL
D 

AL
VIN

 R
D

KNAPP RD

GLASTONBURY

HICKORY CREEK

LETHBRIDGE

NANCY

BOBBY

BARKLY CT

GLENDA RO
BE

RT

¯0 200 400100 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Future Land Use Map
Final Plat - Highland
Crossing Sec. 1

Parks

Low Density Residential

Offices

Medium Density Residential
Industrial

Public / Semi-Public
MCHARD RD

OL
D 

AL
VIN

 R
D

KNAPP RD

GLASTONBURY

LETHBRIDGE

NANCY

BOBBY

BARKLY CT

GLENDA RO
BE

RT

¯0 200 400100 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Final Plat - Highland
Crossing Sec. 1

MCHARD RD

OL
D 

AL
VIN

 R
D

KNAPP RD

GLASTONBURY

HICKORY CREEK

LETHBRIDGE

NANCY

BOBBY

BARKLY CT

GLENDA RO
BE

RT

¯0 200 400100 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    10/15/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

 
 

 Old Business       New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on 
behalf of Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of 
Savannah Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential subdivision located 
at the 13000 Block of Savannah Bend Dr. 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval. 

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
10/17/13 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 
 

 
 

Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section 5 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah 
Bend Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential subdivision located at the 
13000 Block of Savannah Bend Dr. on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 15.5 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, 
more particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract 
(described as Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an 
instrument of record File #00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an instrument of record in File No. 200080225, 
Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 13000 Block of Savannah Bend Drive. 
  

 
 
SUMMARY:  This request is for the approval of a Final Plat for a 30-lot single-family 
subdivision within Savannah Development.  This proposed subdivision is within the City 
of Pearland’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and has a development agreement with 
the City.  As the property is in the ETJ, zoning does not apply. However, this 
development is governed by a development agreement which adheres to the city 
ordinance dealing specifically with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. 
 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The Unified Development Code does not apply for 
the Savannah Development Agreement as this was approved with the previous zoning 
ordinance, The Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance.  The development 
agreement that is in place governs the overall development of the subdivision and was 
written to meet the guidelines of the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Savannah Bend Section 
5 is in conformance with the approved Savannah Development Agreement.  The exhibit 
below compares the requirements of the development agreement to the proposed 
subdivision: 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 2 
 

 
Exhibit 1: Savannah Development Agreement: R-3 (Single Family Dwelling 

District) 
Standard Required R-3 Standard Minimum Provided 
Minimum lot width N/A 60 Feet Approximately      

55 feet* 
Minimum lot depth N/A N/A 115 feet 
Minimum lot area N/A 6,000 Square feet Greater than 6,325 

Square feet 
Maximum Density 7 dwelling units an 

acre or less 
N/A 3.07 Dwelling Units 

an acre. 
* The Savannah Development Agreement follows the R-3 PUD standards of the Land 
Use and Urban Design Ordinance, which does not have a required minimum lot size or 
width.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
South ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
East ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Drill Site 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLACE: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential future land use plan designation.  The proposed 
subdivision is within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as 
the average lot size is 6000 – 7000 sq. ft.    
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
within the Savannah development and served by local streets.  The Savannah 
Development is served by a future 120-foot Major Thoroughfare of Post Road (CR 58).     
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there have been no additional comments.   
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section Five 

Page 3 
 

UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to serve 
this subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Savannah Development Agreement.  Plans have been reviewed and approved by the 
Engineering Department. 
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees have been paid for this section.  
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  The required inspection fees for this section were paid at the 
time of submittal. An agreement has been reached with the city allowing the developer 
to pay previously unpaid inspection fees in installments.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of 
Savannah Bend Section Five as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Savannah Bend Section Five Plat 

 
 
 



Vicinity Map
Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Future Land Use Map
Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

Low Density Residential

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Final Plat of
Savannah Bend 
Section 5

CROIX RD

KENDALL GLEN CT

GREEN SHORES LN

SOUTHERN ORCHARD LN

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

F 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    10/15/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 

 
 

 Old Business         New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, 
applicant, on behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of 
the Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract, generally located at the 2500 Block of 
Miller Ranch Rd. for approximately 33.3 acres. 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
10/17/13 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 
 
Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 
 

A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the Master 
Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract, generally located at the 2500 Block of Miller 
Ranch Rd. on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 33.3 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. Survey, 
A-233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract, a proposed 
79 lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 33.3 acres.  This proposed 
subdivision is zoned Single Family Residential – 3 (R-3).  Following approval of the 
master plat, the next step in the platting process will be to preliminary and subsequently 
final plat Section 1 and then Section 2 of the proposed subdivision for development. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North SR-12, R-1 Single Family Residential 

(Somersetshire Estates) 
South R-3 Single Family Residential 

(Sunrise Lakes) 
East R-3 Single Family Residential 

(Sunrise Lakes)  
West GC, R-1 Office Warehouse, Vacant Land 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject parcel is in conformance with the 
Unified Development Code.  The parcel is zoned Single Family Residential – 3 (R-3).  
The requirements for this zone can be found in the table shown below.  The proposed 
master plat exceeds the requirements of the (R-3) zone. 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 

Page 2 
 

 
 Table 2: R-3 Single-Family Dwelling District  

 R-3 Requirements Silverlake Parkway Tract 

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 square feet 7,800 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 60 Feet 65 Feet 

Minimum Lot Depth: 90 Feet 120 Feet 

  
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first phase of the platting process for the Silverlake 
Parkway Tract.  As the developer will be developing the subdivision in two phases, the 
master plat process is required. 
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Low Density Residential land use designation on the Future Land Use Plan. The 
Low Density Residential land use designation would be associated with the SR-12 and 
R-1 zoning designation.  These zones require minimum lot sizes of 12,000 and 8,800 
square feet, respectively. This proposed plat is not in conformance with the Low Density 
Residential land use designation as the proposed lots are not a minimum of 8,800 
square feet. However, a zone change to the Single Family Residential-3 (R-3) zone, 
considered to be medium density residential, was approved by City Council in 
November 2012 for this site, allowing for the proposed lot sizes.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served 
by Silverlake Parkway., which is an 80-foot Major Collector and Sunshade Ct, a 60-foot 
Local Street. As part of this development, Silverlake Parkway will need to be extended 
to the northern boundary of this subdivision.    
     
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat was discussed at the Development Review 
Committee meeting.  No additional comments were raised that have not been 
addressed by the applicant.         
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
approved by the Engineering Department. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  A Preliminary Drainage Plan has been approved by 
the Engineering Department.    
 
PARKLAND FEES:  Parkland dedication fees will be required prior to approval of any 
Final Plats.   
 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 

Page 3 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Master Plat of 
Silverlake Parkway Tract as proposed by the applicant for the following reason: 
 

1. The proposed Master plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Unified Development Code. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Master Plat of
Silverlake Parkway Tract

RE

R-3

GB

R-1

SR-12

PUD

GC

OP

BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

STERLING DR

SUNDOWN DR

SUNLAKE DR

SMITH RD

KING AUTHORS CT

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

CR 90

SUNNY SHORES DR

HARRINGTON DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

HAMILTON DR

SUNDAY HOUSE DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Master Plat of
Silverlake Parkway TractMedium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Low Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

High Density Residential BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

STERLING DR

SUNDOWN DR

SUNLAKE DR

SMITH RD

KING AUTHORS CT

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

CR 90

SUNNY SHORES DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

HAMILTON DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Master Plat of
Silverlake Parkway Tract

BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

STERLING DR

SUNDOWN DR

SUNLAKE DR

SMITH RD

KING AUTHORS CT

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

CR 90

SUNNY SHORES DR

HARRINGTON DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

AUTUMN LAKE TRL

HAMILTON DR

SUNDAY HOUSE DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

G 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    10/15/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Sec. 1 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, 
applicant, on behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of 
the Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1, generally located at the 
2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. for approximately 21 acres. 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 
 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 
 

A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1, generally located at the 
2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 21 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. Survey, 
A-233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 
1, a proposed 42 lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 21 acres.  
This proposed subdivision is zoned Single Family Residential – 3 (R-3). This section of 
the development includes a 3 acre reserve for a detention lake and a 1 acre reserve for 
a neighborhood park that will front on Hickory Slough.  A trail easement is being 
provided along Hickory Slough for the construction of a required primary trail.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North SR-12, R-1 Single Family Residential 

(Somersetshire Estates) 
South R-3 Single Family Residential 

(Sunrise Lakes) 
East R-3 Single Family Residential 

(Sunrise Lakes)  
West GC, R-1 Office Warehouse, Vacant Land 

 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject parcel is in conformance with the 
Unified Development Code.  The parcel is zoned Single Family Residential – 3 (R-3).  
The requirements for this zone can be found in the table shown below.  The proposed 
preliminary plat exceeds the requirements of the (R-3) zone. 
 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 

Page 2 
 

 
 Table 2: R-3 Single-Family Dwelling District  

 R-3 Requirements Silverlake Parkway Tract 

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 square feet 7,800 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 60 Feet 65 Feet 

Minimum Lot Depth: 90 Feet 120 Feet 

  
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first preliminary plat for the Silverlake Parkway Tract. 
As the proposed subdivision is to be developed in two section, as indicated on the 
Master Plat, Section 2 will be platted separately at a later time.    
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Low Density Residential land use designation on the Future Land Use Plan. The 
Low Density Residential land use designation would be associated with the SR-12 and 
R-1 zoning designation.  These zones require minimum lot sizes of 12,000 and 8,800 
square feet, respectively. This proposed plat is not in conformance with the Low Density 
Residential land use designation as the proposed lots are not a minimum of 8,800 
square feet. However, a zone change to the Single Family Residential-3 (R-3) zone, 
considered to be medium density residential, was approved by City Council in 
November 2012 for this site, allowing for the proposed lot sizes. 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served 
by Silverlake Parkway., which is an 80-foot Major Collector and Sunshade Ct, a 60-foot 
Local Street. As part of this development, Silverlake Parkway will need to be extended 
to the northern boundary of this subdivision.    
     
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat was discussed at the Development Review 
Committee meeting.  No additional comments were raised that have not been 
addressed by the applicant.         
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
approved by the Engineering Department.  
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  A Preliminary Drainage Plan has been approved by 
the Engineering Department.    
 
PARKLAND FEES:  Parkland dedication fees will be required prior to approval of any 
Final Plats.   
 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 

Page 3 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 as proposed by the applicant for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed Preliminary Plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Unified Development Code. 
 

3. The proposed Preliminary Plat is in conformance with the approved Master Plat 
of Silverlake Parkway Tract.  

 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Preliminary Plat of
Silverlake Parkway Tract
Section 1

R-3

RE

GB

R-1

SR-12

PUD

GC

OP

BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

STERLING DR

SUNDOWN DR
SMITH RD

SUNLAKE DR

KING AUTHORS CT

CR 90

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

SUNNY SHORES DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

HAMILTON DR

SUNDAY HOUSE DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Preliminary Plat of
Silverlake Parkway Tract
Section 1Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)
Low Density Residential

High Density Residential
BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

SUNDOWN DR
SMITH RD

SUNLAKE DR

KING AUTHORS CT

CR 90

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

SUNNY SHORES DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

HAMILTON DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Plat of
Silverlake Parkway Tract
Section 1

BROADWAY ST

MILLER RANCH RD

STERLING DR

SUNDOWN DR
SMITH RD

SUNLAKE DR

KING AUTHORS CT

CR 90

SUNRISE HARBOR LN

SUNNY SHORES DR

SUNRISE BLVD
SUNRAY CT

HAMILTON DR

SUNDAY HOUSE DR

SUNNYSIDE LN

SUNNYCREEK LN

LANDON LAKE DR

SU
NH

ILL
 C

T

¯0 260 520130 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

H 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    10/15/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Kristin LeBlanc of Halff Associates, Inc., applicant, on 
behalf of Stream Realty Partners, owner for approval of the Master Plat of The Center 
at Pearland Parkway, generally located at the 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway.  

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
10/17/13 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 21, 2013 

 
 
Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway 
 

A request by Kristin LeBlanc of Halff Associates, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Stream Realty Partners, owner for approval of the Master Plat of The Center at 
Pearland Parkway, generally located at the 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway., 
on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 27.0508 acres of land located in the Thomas J. Green 
Survey, Abstract Number 198, City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway.   
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway, a 
proposed 5 lot commercial subdivision with 1 detention reserve on approximately 27 
acres.  This proposed subdivision is zoned PD within an underlying GB zone.  The PD, 
The Center at Pearland Commons calls for a mix of commercial uses with a large retail 
center in the rear, and a number of out parcel lots fronting on Pearland Parkway. The 
proposed master plat displays all of the required amenities as shown in the PD such as 
the landscaped entrance with boulevard and the outdoor community space on lot C.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North R-2 Vacant Land 
South GB HEB (Under Construction) 
East PD Hometown Bank, Province 

Village PD 
West R-2 Single Family Residential 

(Banbury Cross) 
 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject parcel is in conformance with the 
Unified Development Code with the approved planed development.   
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first phase of the platting process for The Center at 
Pearland Parkway. As the property is zoned Planned Development, a Master Plat is 

 



 
 

P&Z 10/21/2013 
Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway 

Page 2 
 

required in order to illustrate all required amenities.  A Development Plat is in process 
for the property that will be reviewed by staff and recorded.    
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Offices, and Retail, Offices, and Services land use designation.  The appropriate 
zoning designations for these land uses are listed as Office Professional, Neighborhood 
Services, and General Business. The proposed uses as described in the Planned 
Development are in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan.  A Zone Change to 
the current Planned Development was recently approved for this site which also allows 
for the proposed uses.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served 
by Pearland Parkway, which is a 120-foot Major Thoroughfare.  
     
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This plat was discussed at the Development Review 
Committee meeting.  No additional comments were raised that have not been 
addressed by the applicant.         
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
approved by the Engineering Department.  
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  A Preliminary Drainage Plan has been approved by 
the Engineering Department.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Master Plat of The 
Center at Pearland Parkway as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed Master Plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the Unified Development Code. 
 

3. The request is in conformance with the approved Planned Development.  
 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Master Plat of The Center at Pearland Parkway  



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Master Plat of
The Center at Pearland
Parkway

R-2

GB

PUD
GC

R-4

OP

MF

R-1

R-1 CLUSTER
R-3

NS

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER RD

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

LONDON CT

BARRY ROSE RD

LIB
ERTY DR

CRUISE LN
HIDDEN CREEK DR

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

WESTM
INISTER DR

LEE CIR
WATERLOO RD

ETO
N DR

NIC
HO

LA
S D

R

¯0 350 700175 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Master Plat of
The Center at Pearland
Parkway

Offices

Retail, Offices and Services

Parks

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

High Density Residential

Low Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

LONDON CT

BARRY ROSE RD

HIDDEN CREEK DR

WESTM
INISTER DR

LEE CIR

YMCA DR

ETO
N DR

LA
DY LESLIE LN

¯0 350 700175 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Master Plat of
The Center at Pearland
Parkway

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER RD

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

LONDON CT

BARRY ROSE RD

LIB
ERTY DR

CRUISE LN
HIDDEN CREEK DR

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B D

R

WESTM
INISTER DR

LEE CIR
WATERLOO RD

ETO
N DR

PARK VILLA DR

NIC
HO

LA
S D

R

¯0 350 700175 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 I

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1 P&Z Agenda Coversheet.pdf
	1a P&Z Agenda October 21, 2013 P&Z
	2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	3 Minutes P&Z Agenda October 7, 2013 P&Z
	4 NEW BUSINESS
	5 AGENDA ITEM A
	6 A CUP 2013-08 Packet
	1.  CUP 2013-08 JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. CUP 2013-08 Staff Report
	3. CUP 2013-08 Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-08 Abutter Map
	5. CUP 2013-08 Abutters List
	6. CUP 2013-08 FLUP map
	7. CUP 2013-08 Aerial Map
	8. CUP 2013-08 Applicant Packet

	7 AGENDA ITEM B
	8 B Zone Change 2013-16Z Packet
	1.  Zone Change 2013-16Z JPH Agenda.pdf
	2. Zone Change 2013-16Z Staff Report
	3. Zone Change 2013-16Z Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-16Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change  2013-16Z Abutters List
	6. Zone Change 2013-16Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-16Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-16Z Applicant Packet
	9. Zone Change 2013-16Z Public Comment

	9 AGENDA ITEM C
	10 C CUP 2013-09 Packet
	1.  CUP 2013-09 JPH Agenda.pdf
	2.  CUP 2013-09 Staff Report
	3. CUP 2013-09 Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-09 Abutter Map
	5. CUP 2013-09 Abutters List
	6. CUP 2013-09 FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2013-09 Aerial Map
	8. CUP 2013-09 Applicant Packet

	11 AGENDA ITEM D
	12 D Highland Crossing Packet
	1. Highland Crossing Sec. 1 Agenda Request- P&Z.pdf
	2. Highland Crossing  Section 1 Staff Report
	3. Vicinity
	4. FutureLandUse
	5. Aerial
	6. Highland Crossing Section 1 Plat
	MYSCAN_20131016_0001.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131016_0002


	13 AGENDA ITEM E
	14 E Savannah Bend Sec 5
	1 Agenda Request Savannah Bend 5.pdf
	2 P & Z Savannah Bend 5
	3 Vicinity Map
	4 Future Land Use Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Savannah Bend Sec. 5 Plat
	MYSCAN_20131016_0004.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131016_0005


	14 AGENDA ITEM F
	15 F Master Plat of Silverlake Pkwy Tract
	1 Silverlake Parkway Tract Master Agenda Request- P&Z.pdf
	2 Silverlake Parkway Tract Master Staff Report
	3 Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4 Future Land Use Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Silverlake Pkwy. Tract Master Plat

	16 AGENDA ITEM G
	17 G Silverlake Pkwy Tract Sec 1
	1 Silverlake Parkway Tract Sec. 1 Agenda Request- P&Z.pdf
	2 Silverlake Parkway Tract Master Staff Report
	3 Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4 Future Land Use Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Silverlake Pkwy. Tract Section 1 Plat

	18 AGENDA ITEM H
	19 H The Center at Pearland Pkwy
	1 The Center at Pearland Pkwy. Agenda Request- P&Z.pdf
	2 The Center at Pearland Pkwy. Staff Report
	3 Vicinity Map
	4 Futurelanduse Mao
	5 Aerial Map
	6 The Center at Pearland Pkwy. Plat

	20 AGENDA ITEM I
	21 ADJOURN MEETING

